


























































































































































































































Page 1 of 11 
 

TOWN OF TRURO 
Planning Board 
MEETING MINUTES 
July 11, 2018 
TRURO TOWN HALL 
 
Members Present:  Chair Steve Sollog, Karen Tosh, Jack Riemer, Bruce Boleyn, Paul Kiernan, Mike 
Roderick 
 
Members Absent:  Peter Herridge 
 
Others Present: Interim Town Planner-Jessica Bardi, Maria Kuliopulos, Atty. Edward Patten, Atty. David 
Reid, Shawn Harris of Sixteen on Center, Maureen Burgess, Chuck Steinman, Anne Greenbaum, Regan 
McCarthy 
 
Chair Sollog called the meeting to order at 6:07 pm. 
 
Public Comment Period:  None 
 
Continued Public Hearing 
2017-011 SPR Maria Kuliopulos White Sands Beach Club, Inc. seeks approval of a Modification to a 
Commercial Development Site Plan pursuant to §70.3 of the Truro Zoning By-law to maintain existing 
uses, reduce the number of motel units from 51 to 47 and construct a replacement structure in the 
location of a previously demolished fire damaged structure.  The property is located at 706 Shore 
Road, White Sands Beach Club, Atlas Map 1, Parcel 5.  The hearing was continued from April 18, 2018 
and May 23, 2018. 
 
Ms. Kuliopulos and Atty. Patten approached the Board.  There is an application for site plan review 
before the Planning Board.  One of the buildings which had existed on this property suffered fire 
damage in 2014.  It was ordered to be demolished.  There were delays in the ability to reconstruct the 
building and the grandfather protection was claimed to have been eliminated because the building 
wasn’t reconstructed by mid-October 2016.  Along the way, there had been an application for site plan 
review filed with the Planning Board which was given a favorable review back in 2016.  In early 2017 the 
matter came back before the Planning Board.  One or two public hearings were held, and some issues 
were brought up, whereby the whole process shifted to the Zoning Board of Appeals.  They then went 
through a series of hearings which culminated in a decision by the ZBA in November 2017 resulting in a 
finding that the proposed project (along with whatever other situations existed on the property) would 
not be substantially more detrimental to the neighborhood.  Thereafter, abutters in Provincetown filed 
an appeal of that decision with the Barnstable Superior Court.  That is still in litigation.  Atty. Patten is 
moving forward with the site plan review application.  He wished to emphasize that the construction of 
the new building will result in a totally conforming structure.  There are no zoning issues associated with 
the construction of the building.  A site visit was held May 9th at which time the Planning Board asked for 
additional parking plans to be submitted.  Atty. Patten believes they have submitted everything the 
Board has asked for. 
Chair Sollog mentioned the appeal against the Zoning Board.  If the outcome of that appeal is against 
Ms. Kuliopulos, what will that result in?  Atty. Patten stated it would result in further appeal.  The 
practical effect would be, assuming the negative decision annulled the decision of the Zoning Board, 
they would be left with a situation where they wouldn’t have a special permit to move forward with the 



Page 2 of 11 
 

construction.  Under the Zoning statute, when one obtains a special permit from the ZBA one can pursue 
the activity they are seeking to permit at their own risk, even during that period of time where there is 
no final decision by the court. 
Chair Sollog stated that they had a list of plans submitted for site plan review to the Planning Board and 
plans that were identified in the index of the ZBA decision. He began going through each and discussed 
any inconsistencies with Interim Town Planner Bardi.   
Next, Chair Sollog wished to review all their design criteria and see, at what points, they have items that 
might be contested by the Board or found to be in compliance.  He stated that if they looked at the 
criteria, on which they should base all their decisions, there’s quite a list of items.  When they go 
through the list if they find that the application is in conformity with it, they can move on.  Where it’s 
not in conformity, they can try to find out what would make it conform.  He noted there were some 
items that perhaps were not attended to: 

• Lighting 
• Revegetation Plan 

Member Riemer said that a question was raised as to whether or not the parking was sufficient, in as 
much as is the property a motel or a condo.  Chair Sollog stated the Board just received an opinion by 
Town Counsel, and he’d like it to be part of the record.  He proceeded to read the letter.  Town 
Counsel’s opinion is that it should be considered a motel for purposes of the Planning Board review of 
SPR 2017-11, except that units 46 and 47 should be considered dwelling units under the Zoning Bylaw, 
section 10.4.  Member Kiernan gave some historic background of the property.  It was purchased by a 
Mr. Simpson in 1984, and in 1986 he put the property under Chapter 183A- Condominium Ownership.  
The Barnstable Registry of Deeds has a master deed (same deed the Kuliopulos family got from the 
bank) which lists them purchasing each individual condominium unit as part of their Master Deed.  It has 
remained as a condominium through purchase by the Kuliopulos family from Mr. Simpson.  Ms. 
Kuliopulos confirmed that it has not been operated as a condominium.  Chair Sollog read the letter 
further, stating that Town Counsel finds that it has been operated as a rental motel unit.  Units 46 and 
47 would be required to have two parking spaces, per unit.  The motel units are required to have one 
and a quarter parking spaces per unit.  Member Kiernan said that there are 78 parking spaces.  If Ms. 
Kuliopulos wishes to take the 45 units (that are not either the apartment or the single family home 
units) and put them into a condominium form of ownership, under the condominium conversion bylaw 
she would be required to have two parking spaces for each one of the units.  If she cannot provide two 
parking spaces for each one of the units then she cannot convert the property into saleable 
condominiums.  The parking spaces have been maxed out.  Member Kiernan believes she could only 
have a 35- or 36-unit condominium out of the 47-unit motel.  He wants Ms. Kuliopulos to understand 
that the property will not be able to be sold as condominium units under this parking plan. Chair Sollog 
suggested that they could condition with the note that the parking is insufficient for condominium use, 
however the parking is sufficient for motel units.  Member Kiernan stated that condition would be good 
so that no one would be in the dark.  Ms. Kuliopulos does not have a problem with that condition. 
Chair Sollog continued reading Town Counsel’s opinion letter. 
Chair Sollog stated that the Board has not seen a signed parking plan, and some discussion revolving 
around parking, and the parking plan, took place.  Member Riemer read 70.8-Site Plan Approval-Site 
Plan approval for commercial or residential site plan shall expire two years from the date of approval.  At 
the discretion of the Board, a time extension for project completion may be granted.  Member Riemer 
questions whether the site plan approval that is being requested the Board to accept is valid.  Chair 
Sollog stated that there is a project before the Board which requires site plan approval.  They have 
looked at the entire site.  If they are to determine that enough parking is provided, the Board can 
approve a site plan with the parking plan provided, because that’s the Board’s function.  If it’s 
determined that there is not enough parking, the applicant would have to provide that.  The Board is 



Page 3 of 11 
 

who ends up providing an approved parking plan to the applicant.  There was an approved plan, because 
they were going to build, and they didn’t get it done in time.  Member Kiernan stated that under a motel 
use, there would be a total of fifty-seven parking spaces plus four spaces for the two dwelling units, 
which totals sixty-one spaces.  The Board could approve the plan, however if it’s not built two years 
from now, “It goes out the window”.  He also noted that the grassy area, which was designated as 
parking, up against Shore Road, is within ten feet of the property line and is therefore a violation of 
zoning without asking for relief from the Planning Board. If the Board grants relief and the parking 
spaces are not built within two years, that goes away.   Ms. Kuliopulos was not aware of that and hoped 
the grassy area could be kept as open space. Member Kiernan would like that noted in the conditions.  
Chair Sollog told Ms. Kuliopulos that the grassy area did not have to be paved.  He proffered that, since 
the grassy area is not an always used place.  Parking is required by the bylaw.  It’s not always used, but it 
has to be provided.  The grassy area along Shore Road has a curb to it.  It would be inappropriate for 
vehicles to drive over the curb.  If she could do something innovative and ask the Board to approve that.  
Chair Sollog is not interested in turning everything to asphalt.  Member Kiernan is fine with that as long 
as the spaces are designated, but he does have some other questions. 
Member Kiernan pointed out that between the pool building and the parking spaces that are along 
Shore Road, he cannot tell from the plan in front of them what the distance is.  He would also like to 
know the width of the spaces going down the south side of the property, and do they meet their bylaw.  
Discussion was had regarding the distances.  Member Riemer asked if the project would benefit from a 
peer review.   
Atty. Patten stated that once the Zoning Board of Appeals issues a special permit they have effectively 
exercised their power under the Zoning Statute to create an exception for that property from otherwise 
applicable provisions of the Zoning Bylaw rendering, that which is shown on the approved plan from the 
Zoning Board, as lawful.  He is not asking the Planning Board to re-adopt what was approved in 
2015/2016 as they know two years have passed.  What he is attempting to show the Board is that the 
Board reviewed many of these particular items before and approved them.  Chair Sollog believes the 
parking plan is sufficient.  He is trying to get the whole Board to agree that it’s a sufficient parking plan, 
and they have some questions. 
Member Tosh agrees with both Chair Sollog’s, and Atty. Patten’s analysis.  The ZBA reviewed all the 
zoning issues and issued a special permit.  She does not feel the Planning Board should go back through 
all the zoning problems that the ZBA considered. 
Chair Sollog continued, discussing criteria regarding protection for abutting properties and the 
surrounding area from detrimental site characteristics, and from adverse impact from excessive noise, 
dust, smoke, or vibration higher than levels previously experienced from permitted uses.  That is in the 
court system already, due to abutters having an issue.  Member Riemer read from a report created by 
Carole Ridley (former interim Town Planner) in 2017 where they went over these same conditions.  Ms. 
Ridley commented that the location of the HVAC units was to be constructed on the front of the units, 
on the interior of the lot, to minimize disturbance to the abutters.  He stated that this condition had not 
been incorporated and he believes it should be.  Chair Sollog stated that the ZBA saw the plan with the 
air conditioning units and approved those plans, superseding the Planning Board’s ability to tell the 
applicant to move the a/c units because they are now permitted.  Member Riemer asked Interim Town 
Planner Bardi as to whether or not when the ZBA makes a decision and the Planning Board sees an 
element in that decision that they need to consider, should they not dwell on it?  Interim Town Planner 
Bardi stated that she would need to refer that to her superiors before answering.  Member Tosh agrees 
with Member Riemer.  The design criteria (after getting past #1) directly speaks to site plan factors.  The 
abutters have attended hearings, but has the Board heard from them?  She also has concerns about if 
the Board approves the site plan, and this is on appeal for a zoning issue, then will the Board be in a 
situation where everything is built, and the special permit is revoked by a judicial ruling?  Chair Sollog 



Page 4 of 11 
 

stated that the noise issue is not new, and he encouraged abutters to bring their concerns to the 
Planning Board.  He believes the plans submitted show the HVAC units to have a baffle. 
Atty. David Reid, representing an abutter (name was not announced) came up to speak specifically 
about the HVAC units.  He stated that when the site plan was approved in January 2016, the HVAC units 
were to be located in the interior, not the rear, of the building.  Now the units are located in the rear of 
the building, in clusters of three and four units.  When the Planning Board went for their site visit, they 
did hear a fan unit of one operating for a period of time.  The compressor was not on.  These units were 
not present in the approval from two years ago and was not demonstrated to the Planning Board during 
the site visit.  Attorney Reid believes it is a significant problem to his client and he does not believe it’s in 
any way removed from their purview to consider that as part of this process.  If they look at the ZBA’s 
decision, they did not take away from the Planning Board any of their authority under site plan review. 
There was some discussion away from the microphone with Ms. Kuliopulos regarding the placement of 
the HVAC units. Member Riemer said that a peer review by an engineer could come up with a plan for 
the placement.  Ms. Kuliopulos stated she objected.  Chair Sollog stated the air conditioning units were 
still a problem, but he wished to move along. 
The next item to review was regarding intrusive lighting.  Ms. Kuliopulos stated all lighting was 
downward facing, and she would be willing to remove all lighting from the back of the building.  
Member Riemer noted that the Board had originally agreed to review the site lighting in an 
administrative, non-hearing proceeding, one year after completion of the project.  If they felt that a 
condition was not met, they could ask the Building Commissioner, acting as the Zoning Enforcement 
Officer, to review. 
On the next item, pertaining to the protection of significant and important natural historic scenic 
features, Member Reimer asked if they had a current Order of Conditions from the Conservation 
Commission that may be required.  Chair Sollog polled the Board, asking if there was an Order of 
Conditions from three years ago, did they feel that needed to be updated?  Ms. Kuliopulos stated that 
the Order of Conditions was good for three years, and she was going to have to ask for an extension.  
Chair Sollog said that if she could provide the Board with email communication requesting that of the 
Conservation Commission, that would be satisfactory to the Board.  Interim Town Planner Bardi stated 
the Order of Conditions was issued November 17, 2015.  Based upon that date, the Order of Conditions 
is still valid. 
Refuse disposal was discussed next.  Member Riemer stated screening was required, and it could not be 
located within the setbacks.  He would like a picture of what the Board will be approving.  Chair Sollog 
would be satisfied with fencing and some sort of vegetation.   
Proposed sewage disposal and water supply system was discussed next.  Ms. Kuliopulos stated they 
upgraded the system.  Member Riemer noted dedicated lines for water use and fire suppression system 
will be needed.  The water service will need to be provided by the Town of Provincetown.  He asked if 
these items had been addressed.  Ms. Kuliopulos stated the Provincetown Water and Sewer Department 
has approved the lines.  Member Riemer asked, since so much time has lapsed, would she need to 
revisit this with the Provincetown Water and Sewer Department?  Ms. Kuliopulos stated she’d been in 
touch with the Chair of the Board and she was okay. 
Chair Sollog continued with discussion of the proposed drainage system.  Ms. Kuliopulos said there was 
an adequate drainage system.  Member Riemer asked for the date on the proposal.  The date was 
November 10, 2015.   
A soil erosion plan was gone over briefly. 
Whether the proposal provided structural and landscape screening as buffers for storage areas, loading 
docks, dumpsters, etc. was discussed.  Chair Sollog stated that was part of the vegetation plan.  Member 
Riemer stated there were conditions set forth at one time that could help mitigate impacts to abutters, 



Page 5 of 11 
 

specifically additional plantings, repair of the unfinished roof, and relocation of HVAC units to the front.  
Mechanical plans were provided, showing HVAC units in the rear.   
Next was buildings and structures within the subject’s sight shall be harmonious in architectural style, 
building scale, detailing, etc. to the surrounding area.  No issues were discussed. 
Electric telephone cable and other utility lines should be placed underground. 
Project should not place excessive demands on Town services. 
Location and number of curb cuts shall be minimized.  Chair Sollog stated that they already had curb 
cuts and Ms. Kuliopulos will maintain the curb cuts she already has. 
Member Riemer recalled a discussion earlier regarding a parking management plan that would guard 
against parking outside of designated parking spaces as needed and should be enforced.  This is to make 
sure the circulation within the site is adequate and he is not convinced.  What happens if there is a 
medical emergency at the back of the property and there’s no access because people are parked 
everywhere?  Ms. Kuliopulos stated the Fire Chief had no concerns about entering, exiting, or turning 
around. 
Member Kiernan asked a question to Interim Town Planner Bardi.  In her letter to the Planning Board, 
she mentioned she could not find a Master Deed.  If there is a Master Deed would the rest of her letter 
be the same?  She would have to go and review the Registry of Deeds more, as she was not aware of the 
prior name of the property. 
Atty. Reid came back up to speak.  Ms. Kuliopulos stated she has not received any information from the 
abutters so far.  Atty. Reid stated that was the purpose of the public hearing.  He wished to discuss 
different items. 

• There is a Master Deed recorded under the name Buccaneer Condominiums. He provided a copy 
to the Board.   

• Despite what was read at the beginning, and the advertisement, this is not a modification of 
previous approval.  The right to build after the fire expired in October 2016, and they are now 
before the Board with an entirely different context of the application.  This is a brand-new 
request for site plan approval. 

• There have been several references made to the fact that the Zoning Board of Appeals approved 
this site plan, that is not true.  If they look at the decision which was filed with the application 
the ZBA listed the plans that they were basing their decision on.  The very first condition of the 
ZBA decision said that they have not approved the site plan, or the parking plan.  The ZBA 
specifically deferred to the Planning Board to review the site plan and to approve a conforming 
site plan.  Neither the site plan, nor the parking plan, are conforming. 

• He objects to the applicants taking the position before the Planning Board that this is somehow 
a quest to reduce the size of the motel from 51 to 47 units.  They do not have 51 units on this 
site, and they are not entitled to 51 units on the site.  The agreement for judgement (back in 
2016 with the Superior Court) said that they were grandfathered for 51 units, but only if they 
rebuilt before October 2016.  They did not.  That same agreement says that under the current 
bylaw they are entitled, based on the size of the property, a maximum of 47 units.  That includes 
the two units for the manager and apartments.  They have 35 units right now, and that’s all they 
are entitled to.  They are asking to increase the number to 47.  That is a 36% increase, it is not a 
reduction. 

• Regarding the Felco plan from 2010, if they look at their 2016 Site Plan approval it does 
reference the Felco 2010 plan.  However, if they look at that 2010 plan, it is not signed by a land 
surveyor or engineer, nor the Planning Board.  While they have the authority to approve the 
current plan, they have repeatedly referenced that the 2010 Felco plan was previously 
approved, but he believes it never was.  They should not approach the current plan with the 



Page 6 of 11 
 

assumption they have previously approved it, and therefore are bound to do it again.  Even if it 
was once approved, it has long since expired. 

• The front twelve parking spaces are within ten feet of the front line of the street.  You are not 
allowed to have parking spaces within ten feet of front line of the street.  The Planning Board 
can approve parking in that area if they are asked to do so.  As Atty. Reid sees the application 
before them it does not ask for any waivers of Section 30.9-Parking Lot Requirements.  If they 
haven’t asked for any waivers of Section 30.9, the Board cannot grant them.  They would be 
required to submit a parking plan which shows conforming parking, which the applicants must 
feel does conform, because no relief has been requested.  Atty. Reid does not believe this plan 
conforms with Section 30.9 and proceeded to list the items which point towards non-
compliance. 

• The Board has discussed the difference between a condominium and motel use for this 
property.  Atty. Reid states this property has been subjected to the condominium statute, 
Chapter 183 by virtue of a Master Deed and Plan that are on record.  However, if it’s not a 
condominium, and is a motel, then it’s required to comply with the definition of a motel.  Part of 
that is that a motel unit may not contain more than one room.  The Board has plans before 
them in which units are depicted as having a bath area, a kitchen/dining area, a bedroom area, 
and a deck.  He asked the Board, in their assessment, if that’s more than one room.  All 
seventeen of the new units have a similar configuration.  He contends that there is more than 
one room and therefore does not fall under the motel definition. 

• The petitioner is also asking to take ten of the existing motel rooms in the other building and 
convert them into five suites, by putting openings between rooms.  By his calculation, that is 
twenty-one units that are multiple-room suites, not one room motel units. 

In terms of criteria, Atty. Reid had a different view on some items, which he wished to talk about. 
• Zoning compliance-Atty. Reid contends that the plan before the Board is not compliant.  The 

parking lot does not comply with current requirements, the number of parking spaces probably 
does not comply (if they agree that the hospitality room is an area for meetings or gatherings). 

• The proposal, he feels, does not provide protection to abutting properties from any level of 
noise or detriment higher than has customarily been present.  What’s currently there is nothing.  
What was historically there was a modest one-story building which was hidden by a privet 
hedge. 

• Atty. Reid presented the Board with a photograph which was taken of his client’s back yard with 
a pole erected and a flag on top.  The height of the flag depicted the height of the second story 
balcony floor as it related to his property.  It is clearly above the elevation of the hedge there 
now.  Those balconies will be looking down onto all of the back yards, all of the decks, windows, 
and outdoor showers belonging to houses along this stretch of common boundary between the 
two properties.  This is not an insignificant increase in height.  That is an increased, adverse 
effect on the adjoining property. 

• Building Scale is not compatible with the dwellings to the West. 
• He (and his client) do not believe the Planning Board has the authority under their own criteria 

to approve this site plan.  It does not conform to parking requirements, it does not conform to 
the zoning requirements, and it does not conform to site plan review requirements.  It is a major 
change in this neighborhood which will forever change the impact on the neighbors.  They are 
asking the Board to deny the application. 

Chair Sollog had a question for Atty. Reid.  He asked if he happened to know how far away the 
Sandcastle Resort was from the property.  Atty. Reid did not.  The client indicated approximately 1,000 



Page 7 of 11 
 

feet.  Chair Sollog wished to point out that it ran perpendicular with the beach and Shore Road and is a 
condominium/time share property. 
Ms. Kuliopulos wished to dispute some of the issues brought up by Atty. Reid. 

• In regard to people being able to look into outdoor showers from her property’s second floor 
balconies, when those neighbors purchased their properties, there were no decks and no 
outdoor showers. 

• The privet fence is sixteen feet high.  The photograph Atty. Reid presented was taken in May, 
when there were no leaves on the privet fence.  When fully leaved you cannot see anything on 
the other side. 

• The hospitality suite will be an office space and an area for people to sit and drink coffee.  There 
is no space for anything else. 

• She contends that there are no new parking spaces. 
Chair Sollog stated that the public hearing would need to be continued.  Ms. Kuliopulos needs to provide 
the requests that the Board needs.  The parking which is ten feet from the road needs a waiver from the 
Board.  She needs to request that waiver.  The Chair then asked for Interim Town Planner Bardi to 
refresh everyone’s memory of what was needed.  She then listed the following: 

• Address the a/c units and the noise which they will create. 
• Screening for refuse disposal area. 
• Waiver request of strict compliance of the parking plan, which would include: 

o Waiver request of additional required parking for hospitality suite. 
o Waiver request of the sixteen trees required in the parking area. 
o Waiver request of having no less than 10% vegetated items in the parking lot. 
o Waiver request of having the parking spaces which are ten feet from the road. 
o Waiver request for places on the parking plan which show 22.9 feet where 24 feet is 

required. 
o Waiver request for areas showing 16 feet where 24 feet is required. 

Member Kiernan suggested that if the a/c units were moved away from the neighbors and placed 
toward the parking area he believes that will solve a lot of the problem.  Another solution may be to get 
an engineer to look at the issue from the Planning Board’s point of view.  A consensus of the Board 
showed they were all in favor of an engineer. 
 
Member Tosh made a motion to continue 2017-011 SPR Maria Kuliopulos White Sands Beach Club, 
Inc. to August 8, 2018 specifically so the applicant can update the site plan to request waivers that 
have been discussed, and that the Board retain a consultant at the applicant’s expense to analyze the 
noise factor by the HVAC units including advising about mitigating the noise by moving the units or 
some other mitigation could be employed to reduce noise. 
Member Kiernan seconded. 
So voted; 6-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Continued Public Hearing 
2018-002 SPR Christopher Bellonci and Edouard Fontenot seek approval under Section 70.4 of the 
Truro Zoning Bylaw to construct a two-bedroom 1700 square foot single family home located at 186 
Old County Road, Truro, Atlas Map 64, Parcel 17.  The hearing was continued from June 20, 2018.  A 
site visit was conducted on June 25, 2018. 
 



Page 8 of 11 
 

Member Kiernan stated that he came into this hearing late but, following the Mullin Rule, he reviewed 
the recording.  He left his signed affidavit home, which would allow him to participate, and he will return 
the signed form tomorrow. 
 
Shawn Harris, of Sixteen on Center, came before the Board for discussion.  Chair Sollog asked if anyone 
on the Board had any comments.  He proceeded to read through the review criteria.  Member Riemer 
asked if the Board had a letter from the Massachusetts Endangered Species Act.  Mr. Harris stated they 
had not reached out to MESA.  Member Riemer thinks that should be a condition of their approval.  
Chair Sollog asked if a limit of work was stated on the plan, and it was confirmed that it was.  Member 
Riemer would like to have noted on the decision, that the existing cottage, which will not be 
demolished, will be noted as a habitable studio as defined in the Truro Zoning Bylaws, and that the 
kitchen will be removed,  as it’s described in the same Truro Zoning Bylaw.  Member Kiernan noted that 
the new dwelling will be close to the conservation restriction, and there’s the possibility some trees 
could become unstable after the construction.  He’d like to add a condition that if any of the trees need 
to be removed, approval from the Conservation Trust be asked for. 
 
Member Riemer made a motion to approve 2018-002 SPR Christopher Bellonci and Edouard Fontenot 
with the following conditions: 

1. The applicant must reach out to MESA and receive a letter whether they can mitigate any 
effects from cutting into the hill which may affect any wildlife. 

2. If any trees need to be removed, approval must be received by the Truro Conservation Trust. 
Member Boleyn seconded. 
So voted; 6-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Non-Regulatory, Administrative Meeting for 2017-001 SPR Winkler Route 6 Trust 
The Planning Board will hold a non-regulatory, administrative meeting with Michael Winkler, Trustee, 
to review noise conditions on the property and to review compliance with conditions of the decision 
granted on March 7, 2017.  The property is located at 1 Noons Heights Road, Atlas Map 39, Parcel 166. 
 
Chair Sollog noted that Mr. Winkler did not attend the meeting.  He stated that the Planning Board is a 
regulatory Board, not an enforcement Board, however they can ask the Enforcement Officer to find the 
condition of the approved site plan before the Planning Board acts in an enforcement way.  The Planning 
Board needs the support of the Enforcement Officer.  Chair Sollog proceeded to read into the record an 
opinion letter from Town Counsel, Jonathan Silverstein.  Member Tosh would like to try to speak with 
Mr. Winkler one more time to see why he’s been unable to attend.  Interim Town Planner Bardi advised 
that if they decide to bring up the potential for enforcement matter, they should reach out to Mr. 
Winkler’s counsel, Atty. Zehnder. 
Member Roderick is in favor of giving Mr. Winkler another chance to speak with the Board. 
Member Riemer wished to review the minutes from their June 6, 2017 meeting.  The minutes stated 
Atty. Zehnder was contacted on May 22nd about conditions not being met.  At that time, no response 
had been received.  Member Riemer also noted that on June 27th the same issue was discussed.  He 
agrees that Mr. Winkler should be contacted but believes it should be done in a manner which explains 
that if he does not meet with the Planning Board, the consequences will be laid out. 
Member Boleyn shares Member Tosh’s opinion to reach out to Mr. Winkler one more time but feels it 
should be the final time. 
Member Kiernan agrees with the Board contacting Mr. Winkler again, but stated that Mr. Winkler 
should know that this will be the last time.  He has been on the abutting property for the past year and 



Page 9 of 11 
 

has seen that nothing has been done.  A discussion was held on the contents of what the letter should 
contain. 
Maureen Burgess came before the Board with some comments.  She is there as a citizen who has been 
impacted by activities on Mr. Winkler’s property for about four years.  She reminded the Board that 
there is an open legal case still in the court because a permanent injunction has not been signed to stop 
the ABC grinding, which was the original problem that began the process several years ago.  She asked 
the following:  The Planning Board has imposed conditions.  Mr. Winkler has neglected to respond.  She 
understands that the Board is not an enforcer, and they would have to use the Enforcement Officer.  
Surely there must be other avenues, such as fines, that could be used/considered.  She hopes the letter 
they send will not only be strong but will explain that if Mr. Winkler chooses not to appear before the 
Board, they will seek enforcement. 
 
Approve the Draft and Schedule a Public Hearing for Proposed Amendments to the Zoning Bylaw: 
The Planning Board will review and vote on the draft bylaw, vote to refer the proposed bylaw to the 
Board of Selectmen and vote on a date to hold a public hearing on proposed amendments to the 
Town of Truro Zoning Bylaw which would add a new definition of Total Gross Floor Area in Section 
10.4, Definitions and add a new Section 50.2, Area and Height Regulations in all Districts except the 
Seashore District to Determine Maximum Building Size in Truro.  These amendments would change 
the maximum size of residential buildings on lots within the Town of Truro by establishing a 
relationship between building volume, bulk and size that is consistent with Truro’s historical 
development and character. 
 
As Chair Sollog read the item, he wished to correct the section stating, “in all Districts except the 
Seashore District” to read “in the Residential District except the Seashore District”.   
 
Member Riemer made a motion to approve the draft bylaw as presented at tonight’s July 11, 2018 
Planning Board meeting and refer it to the Board of Selectmen. 
Member Boleyn seconded. 
 
Member Kiernan would like to make an amendment to the bylaw.  Member Tosh stated that they 
should not amend it tonight because it’s been noticed for a hearing on July 25, 2018.  They can amend 
after that.  Member Kiernan withdrew his request. 
 
So voted; 6-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Next item was to set a Public Hearing date.  Chair Sollog suggested August 8th, before White Sands, at 
6:00pm.  He noted that there would be two public forums on that date as well.  Chuck Steinman and 
Anne Greenbaum came before the Board.  Mr. Steinman thought they’d had several dates in mind as 
options for the Public Hearing.  He also thought the Board should vote on the public forum dates.  Chair 
Sollog stated there are two public forums to discuss the proposed bylaw.  Those public forums will occur 
at the Public Library.  One will be held on August 1st at 6:00pm, and the second public forum will be held 
on August 4th at 10:00am. 
 
Member Boleyn made a motion to approve the two dates and times of the public forums as August 1, 
2018 at 6:00pm and August 4, 2018 at 10:00am, to be held at the Truro Public Library to discuss 
proposed amendments  to the Town of Truro Zoning Bylaw which would add a new definition of Total 
Gross Floor Area in Section 10.4, Definitions and add a new Section 50.2, Area and Height Regulations 
in the Residential District except the Seashore District to Determine Maximum Building Size in Truro.  



Page 10 of 11 
 

Member Riemer seconded. 
So voted; 6-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Interim Town Planner suggested the Board choose a date for the Public Hearing on the house size bylaw 
next. It was determined to hold the Public Hearing on August 15, 2018 at 6:00pm. 
 
Vote to Refer the Marijuana Bylaws to the Board of Selectmen 
Member Tosh noted that it would be one bylaw.  Member Kiernan had asked for a copy of the response 
of the Craft Cooperative and never received it from the Chair.  He managed to get a copy but has not 
had a chance to read it.  He does have a problem with their referral.  It is not a referral from the 
Planning Board, this is a referral from an Ad Hoc Committee created by the Town Administrator.  This 
Planning Board has never had this zoning bylaw as an agenda item, nor a discussion.  He also pointed 
out that they could not discuss it tonight because the agenda stated The Planning Board will vote to 
refer the draft marijuana bylaws to the Board of Selectmen.  He wants this in the record, and in the 
minutes that this is not a product of the Planning Board per se, although some of the members may 
have been involved, it’s not a Planning Board article.  Member Kiernan had also asked that the hearing 
be noticed at 6:00pm instead of 5:00pm and he stated that change was never made.  Chair Sollog stated 
that there was a scheduling conflict and he believed the hearing would need to stay at 5:00pm.  Chair 
Sollog asked Regan McCarthy to come up and discuss opening a Public Hearing in one location and then 
continuing it to a second location if too many people were in attendance.  
Ms. McCarthy came before the Board.  She stated that having experienced this in the past, if it’s 
necessary to change the venue, her understanding is that the meeting as scheduled (in it’s original 
location) has to open, public comments have to be held at the posted site and then the business of the 
meeting begins and a motion can be made to move the venue.  At that time the meeting adjourns, and 
the group moves to the new site and reopens the meeting at the new site.  She added that they may 
want to check with the Town Administrator. 
Mr. Steinman came back up to speak.  He asked if a copy of the existing bylaw, red-lined by the Craft 
Cooperative, could be posted online before the Public Hearing.  Interim town Planner Bardi will look into 
it.  Ms. Burgess came back up to speak.  She does not believe a red-lined version can be posted online.  
Chair Sollog stated that they are going to check with Town Manager Palmer and/or Town Counsel to see 
if appropriate. 
 
Member Tosh made a motion to refer the proposed Marijuana Bylaw to the Board of Selectmen. 
Member Boleyn seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-1 (Member Kiernan abstained) motion carries. 
 
 
Review and Approval of Meeting Minutes (June 20, 2018) 
 
Member Boleyn made a motion to approve the minutes as written. 
Member Tosh seconded. 
So voted; 6-0-0, motion carries. 
 
No reports from Board Members and Staff. 
 
Next Meeting Agenda-Wednesday, July 25, 2018 at 6:00pm. 
Interim Town Planner Bardi noted the new time for 6:00pm.  Items for the agenda should be the Winkler 
issue (if he attends), 2 temporary sign permits and the Public Hearing of the draft Marijuana Bylaw. 



Page 11 of 11 
 

Chair Sollog made a motion to adjourn at 9:40pm. 
Member Riemer seconded. 
So voted; 6-0-0, motion carries. 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Noelle L. Scoullar 
 



Page 1 of 9 
 

TOWN OF TRURO 
Planning Board 
MEETING MINUTES 
February 5, 2020 
TRURO TOWN HALL 
 
Members Present:  Chair Anne Greenbaum, Karen Tosh, Steve Sollog, Jack Riemer, Bruce Boleyn, Paul 
Kiernan, Peter Herridge 
 
Members Absent:  None 
 
Others Present:  Town Planner-Jeffrey Ribiero, Paul Asher-Best, John O’Reilly, John Casale, Don Poole, 
John McElwee, Philip Scholomiti, Chris Lucy 
 
Chair Greenbaum called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 
Public Comment Period:   
Mr. Asher-Best came before the Board.  He saw on the agenda for tonight that they will be discussing 
ADUs and that they have an ADU working group.  He has an ADU which is not technically an ADU but is 
“screaming to be an ADU”.  He gave some historical information about his property located on Route 6.  
He has a two-bedroom home and also a two-bedroom habitable studio, which currently houses all of 
their stuff.  He is not interested in being a landlord.  In light of the 2018 vote which allows 
condominiums to apply for year-round status, he would like the Board to revisit their 2017 vote on 
Accessory Dwelling Units to allow them to become condominiums with an affordable restriction in 
perpetuity.  He could then sell his cottage for an affordable price.  Member Tosh stated that she thinks 
this should be an agenda item and Chair Greenbaum agreed. 
Member Riemer would like to have the Board revisit their recusal policy at their next meeting and asked 
that the topic be added to their next agenda.  In addition, he’d like to ask, through the Town Manager, 
for any information Town Counsel could provide, to guide them in this effort for transparency.  He’d also 
like to know if there are any current opinions Town Counsel may have expressed since they have been 
Counsel for Truro.  Chair Greenbaum, for clarification, would like to know if Member Riemer is asking to 
look at the recusal process for the Planning Board specifically, or for Boards in general.  Member Riemer 
stated he’d like the Planning Board to have a clear policy, and certainly he’d like to see what the policy is 
for the Select Board and how that trickles down to other Boards. 
 
Public Hearing – Continued 
2019-006/PB - Abigail B. Schirmer, Audrey Schirmer, and Joseph M. Schirmer seek approval of a 
Preliminary Subdivision Plan of Land, pursuant to G.L. c. 41, Section 81S and Section 2.4 of the Town 
of Truro Rules and Regulations Governing the Subdivision of Land with respect to property at Route 6 
and Amity Lane, Truro, MA, Map 46, Parcel 8. 
Member Tosh announced she would recuse herself and leave the room because of the Truro 
Conservation Trust having an interest in the matter.  John O’Reilly introduced himself as the surveyor for 
the Schirmer's.  He did a recap of the intent of the preliminary subdivision.  The Schirmer’s have been 
talking with the Truro Conservation Trust to negotiate the sale of what’s noted as Lot 4 and Lot 5 on the 
plan.  Their main goal is to protect the land delineated as Lots 4 and 5 and put it under the care of the 
Truro Conservation Trust.  He has prepared the preliminary plan, taking the one parcel currently 
approved with one cottage, and dividing it into five lots.  Lot 2 has the cottage on it, Lot 3 is a vacant 
parcel, Lot 4 and 5 is the Western boundary, and the Way (which provides the frontage for both lots 3 



Page 2 of 9 
 

and 4).  Yesterday Mr. O’Reilly got a real sense of the Board’s concern with the road, and the fact that 
the Schirmer’s are asking for all waivers for constructing the Way.  He spoke with Joe Schirmer and Mr. 
Schirmer would like it reiterated to the Board that their main objective is to sell Lots 4 and 5 to the 
Trust.  They have no plans of further development of the cottage on Lot 2, nor build on Lot 3.  Having 
said that, what they are willing to do, if the Board is still concerned about the condition of Amity Lane, 
the Way, and the viability of the buildability of Lot 4, is they would combine Lots 2 and 3 into one lot 
which would remove the division line, still propose the Way along with Lots 4 and 5.  If the deal with the 
Truro Conservation Trust falls through, they are also willing to place a restriction on the Definitive Plan 
that no further division would be proposed without reviewing suitable access with the Planning Board.  
He’d add a condition that if a building permit were ever pulled for Lot 4, that applicant would need to 
come before the Planning Board to address providing suitable access to Lot 4. 
Member Boleyn thought that Lot 4 was unbuildable.  Mr. O’Reilly stated that it has sufficient frontage 
and lot area. Town Planner Ribeiro stated that there are a lot of environmental constraints.  It would be 
difficult to develop it, but the Board cannot consider those limitations because they are to look at zoning 
itself.  The Board of Health and the Conservation Commission could variance everything and they’d have 
a lot which you could place a house on.   
Member Riemer asked how Lot 4 was delineated on the Plan.  Mr. O’Reilly got up and outlined Lot 4 for 
the Board.  Member Riemer asked if you could construct a dwelling within 150 feet of the top of the 
coastal bank.  Mr. O’Reilly stated that with Conservation Commission approval, you could.  Chair 
Greenbaum noted that it looked as though Mr. O’Reilly set up the design of the lot to be buildable even 
though the intent is never to build on it.  Mr. O’Reilly explained that the reason for that was during the 
negotiations with the Conservation Trust, there is a value associated with Lot 4 and whether there is 
room for a sewer system.  Member Riemer asked that in terms of Title 5 area, that can only include 
upland?  Mr. O’Reilly confirmed that it is generally the upland that is calculated.  Mr. Riemer asked how 
much of Lot 4 was considered upland.  Mr. O’Reilly answered, 127 thousand square feet.  Town Planner 
Ribeiro stated that Title 5 requirements do not come under the Planning Board’s jurisdiction.  It’s good 
background information but it does not directly apply to any of the requirements for the review. 
Member Herridge stated that Lot 2 and Lot 3 would be combined and asked if the lot lines would be 
altered.  Mr. O’Reilly stated they would just be combined.   
Member Kiernan’s concerns revolve around safety.  As he understands, Amity Lane ends at a turn-
around which serves as frontage for the last lot.  Mr. O’Reilly stated he was correct.  Member Kiernan 
continued by stating that there was a second lot for which Amity Lane serves as frontage.  At the top, 
there is a section of land that seems to connect Amity Lane with a large piece of property where there 
are three grandfathered homes.  Mr. O’Reilly couldn’t confirm the number of homes but stated there 
were homes there.  Member Kiernan asked about a thin sliver of land which runs along Amity Lane.  He 
wished to know if that provided frontage for the big lot in the back.  The answer was yes.  Member 
Kiernan asked when Amity Lane was created.  He continued by stating that it appears Amity Lane is a 
paper road that never had any construction.  In the future, they could be looking at 4 or maybe 5, 3600 
square foot houses with four or five bedrooms in each house, being serviced by what appears to be a 
line in the sand.  He believes the Schirmer family is still responsible for the road.  He would hate to see 
the Planning Board give up their last chance to put some semblance of a road in so that emergency 
vehicles will be able to access these lots in the future.  The Schirmer’s are asking to connect a new road 
to Amity Lane, which was never built.  It appears to meet no standards.  There is frontage along Amity 
Lane for three houses in the back, and there is a lot that if they combine together (on the preliminary 
plan) they could come back in the future and ANR them apart and he wants to be sure that whatever 
the Planning Board does here remains safe.  He’s not talking about pavement, he’s talking about being 
able to get safety equipment in there, under adverse conditions.  If he’s correct, the existing eight-foot 
wide sand road does not even stay within the legal width of Amity Lane.  Member Kiernan also believes 



Page 3 of 9 
 

that the lot at the end of Amity Lane was created in the 60s, and the only part of the subdivision shown 
was the little circle part at the end of the road.  The Board never approved, in the 60s, a lane that went 
out to the highway.  What was done, within the deed to the property, was stated that the Schirmer’s 
would create a 40-foot wide Way that would go out to Route 6.  In 1990, when the next subdivision plan 
came in, the Schirmer’s came to the Board, and the Board gave approval for the Lane as it exists today 
(with one side not having a curve to it and the other side being curved, to meet the Bylaw).  The 
turnaround is there specifically for safety.  He would like to know if the Schirmer’s will bring this up to 
some sort of minimal standards, because then it would be possible to create another road off of Amity 
Lane.  Without Amity Lane being, in some way, passable, putting another road off of it doesn’t seem 
wise.  Mr. O’Reilly stated that the lot they’re trying to subdivide was created in 1990.  He agrees in 
regard to the condition of Amity Lane in the sense that if the Trust wasn’t involved and they were trying 
to develop Lot 4, they would expect they’d have to bring Amity Lane up to some sort of standard.  In 
talking with Joe Schirmer, their interest is to sell a portion of their property to the Trust.  They are trying 
to develop the Way in order to facilitate that sale.  That is one of the reasons why they are comfortable 
eliminating the interior line so there is only one lot along Amity, and adding the condition that if there is 
any future subdivision of the parcel or Lot 4 seeks to obtain a building permit, the applicant at that time 
would come back to the Planning Board to address the condition of Amity and create the turn-around 
for the Way.  Member Kiernan states that even with combining Lots 2 and 3 that’s eligible, right now, for 
a large dwelling on an unsafe road.  Town Planner Ribeiro explained that any development on Lots 2 and 
3 would be allowed, to the extent it’s allowed on the entire parcel now.  He stated that there are 
conditions proposed which will make it not possible to build a new dwelling unit on these lots without 
returning to the Planning Board and making improvements to the road.  He thinks it’s up to the Board, if 
they are comfortable with those conditions, or they could be more prescriptive in what they want to 
see.  He added that he thought there were some questions about the Rural Roads Alternative.  He stated 
that with Lots 2 and 3 combined there would be four buildable lots and therefore would qualify for the 
Rural Roads Alternative.  Chair Greenbaum stated that the Rural Roads Alternative talks about dwellings 
served, not dwellings having frontage.  She asked Mr. O’Reilly if he knew if the dwellings that have 
frontage from that back lot actually get onto a road.  It was confirmed that their access is not from 
Amity Lane.  Town Planner Ribeiro said that one of the changes proposed (combining Lots 2 and 3) is 
important because that removes a building lot (when they had five building lots, they would not qualify 
for the Rural Roads Alternative).   Member Kiernan read the Rural Roads Alternative definition and went 
over items which could be waived.  Mr. O’Reilly stated that he’s not sure the project will move forward if 
the road needs to be brought up to some sort of standard.  Member Kiernan asked how cheaply Mr. 
O’Reilly could bring Amity Lane up to any standard.  He does not know how to answer that.  Mr. 
Schirmer had, at one point, stated that if the Board wanted something substantial done, he might have 
an issue with the neighbors located to the South who do not want Amity Lane to be improved. 
Member Kiernan had another issue he wished to address.  The new road that they are looking to create 
which will provide frontage for Lot 3 and 4 does not meet the Bylaw.  Where the two roads meet there 
is a twenty-foot radius on one side, and no radius on the other side.  In order for that to be a buildable 
road there would have to be a twenty-foot radius unless they were willing to, post creation, go to the 
ZBA and seek relief from that.   
Chair Greenbaum wished to pose something to the Board.  She asked, if they were able to come up with 
something where any building on the combo lot (2/3) or lot 4 (including expanding the cabin) would 
have to come back to the Planning Board, and if there were some sort of turn around, how would they 
feel about the proposal? 
Mr. O’Reilly thinks the big obstacle for the Schirmer’s is the condition of Amity Lane and what the Board 
may require them to do, today.  With regards to the Way, and the 25-foot buffer, he would need to take 
a look at that and if they got to a definitive process, address that specific comment. 



Page 4 of 9 
 

Member Sollog would be in favor of it and wished to know what the view of the land looks like for the 
last lot on Amity Lane.  Town Planner Ribeiro pulled that up on the screen and noted that one thing to 
keep in mind is that if the Board is talking about requiring some improvements, those would have to be 
within the layout of the road and right now that drive doesn’t follow the road.  A turn around and access 
would have to be in another area (not in the current path).  Chair Greenbaum asked if a turn-around 
happened at the proposed intersection of Amity Lane and Way, would that work for the Board.  
Member Kiernan said no, because the bylaw states that the turn around that shall be provided has to be 
at the end of the road.  He then noted that it does provide, within the bylaw, that when you have a 
narrow road (that would be within the Rural Roads Alternative) that there be turn outs.  Chair 
Greenbaum asked if Member Kiernan if he meant instead of, or in addition to, the turn-around at the 
end of the road.  Member Kiernan clarified that he meant in addition to.  Mr. O’Reilly asked if the Board 
could give him some insight as to whether they will require Amity Lane to be brought up to Rural Roads 
standards, including the turn-around, and not have it be conditioned on when/if the Conservation Trust 
falls through and when/if Lot 2/3 is developed.  Member Sollog stated that if the Board was deadlocked, 
the answer becomes no because the opinion of the Board is even right now.  From his perspective, it 
would be likely that the Board would come to a 3 to 3 decision.  Mr. O’Reilly is not pushing for a 
decision.  He envisions himself going back to the Schirmer’s and he would like to say, “The majority of 
the Board has given us the opinion that Amity Lane needs to be brought up to Rural Roads standards 
and we must have a turn-around at the end of the road.”  If that’s where the majority of the Board is 
going, then he needs to hear that so he can go back to the Schirmer’s.  Member Kiernan stated that 
that’s what one vote would like to see before creating a new road.  Member Sollog said that the Chair 
can ask for a consensus and find out it sits with the Board.  Member Herridge stated that he would agree 
with Member Kiernan’s opinion.  Member Boleyn is in favor of upgrading Amity Lane and adding the 
turnaround at the end of the road.  Member Riemer would like to save as many trees as possible (due to 
global warming) and to work something out to everyone’s advantage, but he just doesn’t feel like they 
have that at this point. 
Chair Greenbaum asked if there are ways they haven’t thought about that might help address the safety 
concerns, in getting some sort of turn around.  Mr. O’Reilly’s reaction would be to review this with the 
Schirmer’s, and to walk the road again with the Fire Chief to see what he would need, whether that be a 
hammer-head turn at the Way or having a requirement of having to go all the way to the bottom.  Based 
on that conversation with the Chief, and if the Schirmer’s want to continue, he’d come back with a 
proposal which would show the type of improvements that would be done to Amity Lane.  Town Planner 
Ribeiro confirmed that they had time extensions through the 19th.  Mr. O’Reilly would like to hear from 
the two other Planning Board members on their opinions about improvements to Amity Lane.  Member 
Riemer wished to point out the General Bylaws; 1-9-13, Public Safety Clearing Guidelines, as they may 
be applicable to the discussion. 
 
Member Sollog made a motion to continue the hearing 2019-006/PB Abigail B. Schirmer, Audrey 
Schirmer, and Joseph M. Schirmer to date certain February 19th, 2020. 
Member Kiernan seconded. 
So voted; 6-0-0, motion carries. 
*Member Tosh returns to the room and rejoins the Board. 
 
Public Hearing 
2019-010/PB - Richard and Cynthia Perry seek approval of an application for an Accessory Dwelling 
Unit Permit pursuant to Section 40.2 of the Truro Zoning Bylaw.  The property is located at 15 Perry 
Road, Truro, MA, Map 45, Parcel 132. 
 



Page 5 of 9 
 

John Casale, a builder representing the Perry’s, approached the Board.  He has Health and Conservation 
approval.  Town Planner Ribeiro stated there were questions about the square footage.  They have the 
1,000 square foot limit and the original proposal was over that.  Chair Greenbaum said that many on the 
Board redid the calculations and they are still coming up with over 1,000 square feet.  Town Planner 
Ribeiro pulled up the measurements and based upon the definition of Gross Floor Area (excluding the 
garage and other non-living space), and measuring from the interior walls, he gets an interior space of 
25’ x 35’4” which comes to 883.3 square feet, along with a 9 x 11 foot bathroom which is another 99 
square feet and that brings the total to 982 square feet.  Member Kiernan thinks the problem lies in the 
bylaw.  He’s been to the site, and it seems reasonably fine within the bylaw.  He does have a problem 
with a parking space being designated within the garage.  Chair Greenbaum wished to be sure they were 
okay with the measurements before discussing the parking space.  Town Planner Ribeiro is confident 
with the calculations that they are under the 1,000 square foot limit.  He suggested including, in the 
decision, that the applicant provide a plan with interior dimensions to the Building Commissioner so that 
he can verify that it’s under 1,000 square feet. 
Member Kiernan continued, stating he’s somewhat uncomfortable with saying that there is a parking 
space inside, but being familiar with the property he knows there is more than enough room for another 
parking space outside. 
 
Member Sollog moved in the matter of 2019-010/PB-Richard and Cynthia Perry to approve, with 
conditions, a permit for an Accessory Dwelling Unit, pursuant to Section 40.2 of the Truro Zoning 
Bylaw with respect to property located at 15 Perry Road, in accordance with the plans submitted in 
this application subject to the following conditions: 

1. Once an ADU has been added to a dwelling structure, or lot, the ADU shall not be enlarged 
beyond the square footage specified in the permit granted pursuant to Section 40.2 of the 
Truro Zoning Bylaw without first obtaining a subsequent permit from the Planning Board and 
in no case shall and ADU be permitted to exceed the square footage allowed by Section 40.2 
of the Truro Zoning Bylaw. 

2. The principal dwelling and ADU and lot in which they are located shall remain in common 
ownership, and shall not be severed in ownership, including that the lot, buildings, or units 
thereon shall not be placed in a condominium form of ownership. 

3. Either the ADU, or the principal dwelling on a lot with an ADU, must be leased for a term of at 
least twelve months.  Rental of said unit for a period of less than twelve months (including, 
but not limited to seasonal renting and renting through vacation rental services and websites) 
is prohibited.  Proof of year-round rental shall be provided annually to the Building 
Commissioner in the form of a lease, and a signed affidavit from both the owner and renter 
stating the unit is being rented accordingly and is used as a primary residence. 

4. The ADU shall be inspected annually, or as frequently as deemed necessary, by the Health and 
Building Departments for compliance with public safety and public health codes.  The owner 
of the property shall be responsible for scheduling such inspections and shall pay any 
applicable inspection fees. 

5. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall provide a floor plan showing all 
interior dimensions and wall thicknesses to the Building Commissioner so as to verify the ADU 
has a gross floor area as defined under the bylaw as less than 1,000 square feet. 

Member Boleyn added that a house number should be affixed to the house. 
Member Herridge seconded. 
So voted; 7-0-0, motion carries. 
Chair Greenbaum closed the public hearing. 
 



Page 6 of 9 
 

Board Action/Review 
2020-001/SPR - Ethan Poulin seeks Waiver of Commercial Site Plan Review pursuant to Section 70.9 of 
the Truro Zoning Bylaw for the installation of a garden shed at the existing commercial property 
located at 5 Highland Road, North Truro, MA, Map 36, Parcel 201. 
 
Town Planner Ribeiro stated that Mr. Poulin was unable to attend the meeting tonight and has asked to 
postpone the matter to the next meeting. 
 
Member Herridge made a motion to continue case 2020-001/SPR to the regularly scheduled meeting 
of February 19, 2020. 
Member Kiernan seconded. 
Member Riemer asked if there was a site plan on record?  Town Planner Ribeiro stated that the Board 
had what was provided by the applicant.  He can follow up with Mr. Poulin if the Board wishes to have 
something more detailed.  Member Riemer would appreciate him doing so.  Member Boleyn states that 
the application is incomplete as it is not properly executed with signatures.  Town Planner Ribeiro shall 
follow up with that as well.  Member Riemer noticed that the application was not dated, or time 
stamped and wanted to know why not.  Town Planner Ribeiro said that for some reason Member 
Riemer did not get the correct application and will be sure he gets a dated/stamped one.  Member 
Boleyn noticed that the disposal declaration does not list the address of the disposal area.  Town 
Planner Ribeiro and Member Tosh noted that it’s listed on the express building permit. 
So voted; 7-0-0, motion carries. 
 
2020-002/PB - Marilyn and Richard Haviland, Trustees of the Marilyn Haviland Revocable Living Trust 
seek approval of Form A – Application for Determination that Plan Does Not Require Approval (ANR) 
pursuant to Section 2.2 of the Town of Truro Rules and Regulations Governing the Subdivision of Land 
with respect to property at 5 Kestral Lane, Truro, MA, Map 39, Parcel 241. 
Don Poole with Outermost Land Survey approached the Board.  He represents the 
Haviland’s/Shearwater Homeowner’s Association.  This is a plan where the owners of lot 94 Kestral Lane 
have agreed to convey their ownership of the fee, of Kestral Lane, to the Association.  This has been 
done other times in the past twenty years.  He explained that in purchasing this lot, it includes the fee to 
the center line in the road.  The area, in frontage, is for the body of the lot but the fee in the road 
remains separate to lot 94.  The Association is desirous of owning all the fees in the roads and has 
negotiated with the owners to buy those individual fees.  This creates the lot 112, fee interest in Kestral 
Lane, for lot 94.  Chair Greenbaum summarized, stating this creates a lot, that’s the fee in the road, to 
transfer it to the homeowner’s association. 
Member Riemer asked what the original square footage of this lot was.  Mr. Poole stated the square 
footage of the lot is 35,302 square feet, that does not include the fee and the Way because it’s a right of 
way and buildable upland does not include fees and right of ways.  Member Kiernan asked that this 
newly created lot was never a part of Lot 94?  Mr. Poole said that Lot 94 owns the fee to the center line 
of Kestral Lane.  The area for Lot 94 does not include that fee interest in Kestral Lane for buildable 
upland.  Member Kiernan confirmed that the 35,302 square feet never included the 3,268 square feet.  
Mr. Pool said that was correct.  To make it easier to understand, Town Planner Ribeiro explained that 
they are creating a lot out of the portion of the road that this person owns so that they can then transfer 
that portion to the Association. 
  
Member Sollog made a motion to endorse the Approval Not Required Plan for Marilyn and Richard 
Haviland-2020-02/PB. 
Member Boleyn seconded. 



Page 7 of 9 
 

So voted; 7-0-0, motion carries. 
 
2020-003/PB - Keith E. Kodat and Ellen E. Conklin seek approval of Form A – Application for 
Determination that Plan Does Not Require Approval (ANR) pursuant to Section 2.2 of the Town of 
Truro Rules and Regulations Governing the Subdivision of Land with respect to property at 3 and 5 
Souzas Way, Map 46, Parcels 97 and 105. 
 
John McElwee from Coastal Engineering approached the Board.  He has prepared a plan where they are 
rearranging the lot line between two lots.  Each of the lots has a dwelling.  Member Kiernan asked if 
both lots were in common ownership.  Mr. McElwee stated that Keith Kodat is the owner listed for 3 
Souzas Way and Ellen Conklin is the owner listed for 5 Souzas Way.  He believes they are married, and 
both have signed the application. 
 
Member Tosh made a motion to endorse the Approval Not Required Plan for Keith Kodat and Ellen 
Conklin-2020-003/PB. 
Member Herridge seconded. 
So voted; 7-0-0, motion carries. 
 
2020-004/PB - Donna M. Turley seeks approval of Form A – Application for Determination that Plan 
Does Not Require Approval (ANR) pursuant to Section 2.2 of the Town of Truro Rules and Regulations 
Governing the Subdivision of Land with respect to property at 7 Turnbuckle Way, Map 43, Parcel 105. 
 
Philip Scholomiti from Ryder & Wilcox approached the Board.  He explained that the property is situated 
at the end of Turnbuckle Way, zoned residential, and the plan is for conveyancing purposes.  The plan 
divides an existing lot into two lots; 2A and 2B.  Member Kiernan asked if all the construction taking 
place is happening on the abutting lot that’s going to get this new piece of property.  Mr. Scholomiti 
stated yes. 
 
Member Tosh made a motion to approve Plan of Land as prepared for Donna M. Turley, dated 
1.22.2020, Approval Not Required. 
Member Herridge seconded. 
So voted; 7-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Discussion of potential amendments to the Zoning Bylaw for the 2020 Annual Town Meeting. 
 
Chair Greenbaum explained that Town Planner Ribeiro put together all the conversations had at work 
sessions and the draft bylaws.  She would like to talk about timing.  Town Planner Ribeiro stated that the 
ADU Subcommittee is going to be meeting tomorrow.  The timeline he thinks makes the most sense, 
that allows them to have the hearing before the Warrant closes, would be to meet next Wednesday 
during which they could vote to send the Zoning Bylaws to the Select Board.  They could then “pre-
notice” the hearing and send to the Banner the following day, and also the Cape Cod Times in order to 
give them the 14 days.  The hearing would be posted in the Banner on the 20th and 27th.  The Board 
could then hold their hearing on the 4th and finalize their report to the Select Board for the March 10th 
meeting, where they intend to close the Warrant. 
The other item they’ve been working on is the General Bylaw amendment.  It does not have to have a 
hearing.  If they can work on that and have it ready to go at their next regular meeting scheduled for the 
19th that would be preferable.  He could get it to the Select Board on the 25th for consideration on the 
Warrant.  Chair Greenbaum would like them to review the non-ADU items. 



Page 8 of 9 
 

Food Truck- Member Kiernan had some questions about the use table.  He noted it’s permitted in every 
area in Town.  The current location of food trucks, and ones currently proposed, would be on Beach 
Point, North Truro, the possibility of Truro Center (with the Ag Fair), North Truro Center with 
Chequessett.  If it’s allowed in the residential zone, anyone can apply for something in their front yard 
and leave it open all summer.  He’d like to mention that at Truro Vineyards, where there has successfully 
been one food truck, that’s a pre-existing, non-conforming use within the residential zone.  By limiting it 
to pre-existing, non-conforming commercial uses within the residential zone they don’t have everyone 
applying.  He asked if there should be different types of permits?  For example; the Church wants to run 
a festival, so they get a permit for a week.  Perhaps they can place a number to the table, stating that 
food trucks would be allowed in the residential zone ONLY in pre-existing, non-conforming commercial 
uses.  Member Herridge stated that the Select Board will be licensing these and presumably could curtail 
an abuse of that kind.  Discussion was had regarding using this language.  A suggestion was made to 
make it a special permit.   Chair Greenbaum stated that the Board had talked themselves out of doing 
special permits is that it would require the applicant to come to them (the Planning Board), as well as to 
the Select Board.  She said it seems like the Board likes the condition, so the question is wording.  She 
asked the Town Planner to bring both options to the work session. 
Off-street parking- Chair Greenbaum stated that this is an attempt to deal with some conflicting or 
aggregating parking requirements, especially for establishments with more than one purpose; a deli 
which also sells groceries.  This adds the Zoning Board of Appeals, by Special Permit, as a way for a 
person to get a waiver if they don’t need to do a Site Plan Review. 
Accessory Dwelling Unit-findings of the Planning Board-Currently the permit decision is not appealable.  
The sub-committee would like more guidance for what makes the most sense.  Member Herridge stated 
it’s improper to have a decision by a regulatory board not appealable.  Member Kiernan stated it is 
illegal.  He continued by saying they’d have to eliminate the portion that states the permit decision is 
not appealable.  It automatically defaults to MA General Law 40A, subsection 17, which states if you 
have a problem with the Board’s decision you take it to court.  Member Tosh favors having the interim 
appeal to the Zoning Board of Appeals because an applicant could appeal to the ZBA without a lawyer.  
If the ZBA then denied the permit, under denied relief, then there would be the ability to go to court.  
Chris Lucy approached the Board.  He stated that this went to Legal two or three times and that issue 
was never noticed.  Reading through the General Laws of what a special permit is, it is stated that a 
special permit would be granted for activities that aren’t generally allowed in a particular zone.  This 
isn’t a special permit.  When you then go to Section 17 it speaks specifically to special permits.  This is a 
permit granted by the Planning Board.  If you look through the ADU process, the Planning Board is just 
collecting the plans and making sure all is in order.  They are not making decisions on the style of the 
building, or decisions on anything else other than the packet is complete.  There are only 3 ways the 
Planning Board can deny the plan; 1-it's incomplete, 2-if there’s an impasse on something the Board 
would like to see on the plan, 3-it doesn’t meet the bylaw.  This is not a special permit.  Mr. Lucy would 
like to see this not change, or at least get more specific information from Counsel.  Town Planner Ribeiro 
stated that he spoke with Jonathan Silverstein (Town Counsel) about this.  Counsel agreed that there is a 
legal route of appeal.  This ADU permit isn’t referenced in the Zoning Act anywhere and the courts have 
decided that it can still be appealed under Section 17 so alternate kinds of zoning permits (outside of 
special permits) can also be appealed. 
Member Tosh asked Mr. Lucy if he would be interested in clarifying the ability of the applicant to appeal 
a denial?  Mr. Lucy stated that applicants would not appeal, they would just reapply.  Member Tosh 
referenced a particular ADU in which the applicant had to go to court to have conditions reversed.  If 
that applicant could have gone to the Zoning Board of Appeals instead of filing a lawsuit and spending 
money, that’s the type of circumstance she’s referencing.  Mr. Lucy stated that legal counsel could give 
them a better understanding.  Town Planner Ribeiro thinks ultimately, the way to have these things not 



Page 9 of 9 
 

appealable is to have them be by right.  He agrees that there are a limited amount of circumstances on 
which the Planning Board can deny and he thinks there could be opportunities to discuss ways to ensure 
that these things happen, while making it by right.  He also feels this will not be ready for the upcoming 
Town Meeting.  One option could be to leave it as-is for now and continue the discussions and moving 
forward.  Member Tosh, after listening to Mr. Lucy and Town Planner Ribeiro, agrees that leaving things 
as-is for now is a good option.  Member Reimer stated that any applicant has the opportunity to 
withdraw, and then reapply, acknowledging what the issues were.  That would avoid the Planning Board 
having to vote to deny.  Member Kiernan asked if Town Planner Ribeiro could help the Board with some 
legal definitions.  What is the difference between a Permit and a Special Permit?  Town Planner will 
bring that to their next meeting.  Member Kiernan would also like a copy of whatever letters Jonathan 
Silverstein has done around the review of the ADU, to see his thinking. 
The next item Chair Greenbaum brought up was cutting down the amount of copies.  The Board had 
agreed to an original, 9 copies, and a digital copy.  She asked if the Board was still okay with that, and 
they were. 
The last item to review was something Town Planner Ribeiro picked up on was on the topic of waiving 
Commercial Site Plan Review when the alteration or reconstruction of a building or structure won’t have 
a significant impact.  They would allow that to include a new building.   
The items regarding a potential proposal to amend the Truro General Bylaws to regulate the filling of 
land, and the discussion of high priority goals will be discussed at their work session next Wednesday. 
The discussion of contacting US Department of the Interior regarding ADUs will also be pushed to the 
work session for next Wednesday. 
Chair Greenbaum asked Town Planner Ribeiro if there were any updates on the Cloverleaf, and when 
the peer review could be expected?  He replied that he is still tracking for the middle of February. 
Update on past Work Sessions-Chair Greenbaum stated they have been working on the articles. 
Update by Planning Board/Select Board ADU Ad Hoc Subcommittee on their Work Sessions-Chair 
Greenbaum stated that the Committee is meeting at the Library tomorrow. 
Discussion of dates for future Board public workshops-Chair Greenbaum noted that the next work 
session is scheduled for next Wednesday, February 12th at 2:30pm. 
 
Member Herridge made a motion to adjourn at 7:31pm. 
Member Kiernan seconded. 
So voted; 7-0-0, motion carries. 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Noelle L. Scoullar 



 

Truro Planning Board Public Meeting-Work Session Minutes of 2/12/2020 Page 1 of 5 

TOWN OF TRURO 

PLANNING BOARD 

Work Session Minutes 

February 12, 2020 – 2:30 pm 

Truro Town Hall 

 

 

Members Present:  Anne Greenbaum (Chair); Karen Tosh (Vice Chair); Jack Riemer (Clerk); 

R. Bruce Boleyn; Peter Herridge; Paul Kiernan; Steve Sollog 

 

Members Absent:  None 

 

Other Participants:  Jeffrey Ribeiro, AICP – Truro Town Planner 

 

 

Discussion took place regarding proposed Zoning Bylaw Amendments for Town Meeting in April. 

 

Definition of a food truck, Use Table, Special Permit issued by the Zoning Board of Appeals, and 

parking was discussed by the Board for both Residential and Seashore districts.  Town Planner 

Ribeiro stated that currently the only Special Permit this Board issues is for communications 

structures; use permits being moved to the Planning Board would be a general policy change.  

Adding a definition only was debated; Use Table referencing Special Permit and using the 

Footnote permitting to indicate how it now exists was discussed.  Member Sollog stated that the 

Select Board provides the license and the conformity is through the Board of Health.  Why not use 

them as the Boards for permitting and, only if it is a new use, consider having it go through Site 

Plan Review.  Town Planner Ribeiro suggested some language that could be used for the Footnote.  

There was further discussion by the Board regarding Use Table, Special Permit and Footnote 

language.  Number of parking spaces per food truck was reviewed as well as possible food truck 

locations and seasonal congestion in those areas.  Member Sollog made a motion that the Board 

approve the wording of this Article and send it to the Select Board for review.  Before voting, 

Chair Greenbaum brought up Member Kiernan’s suggestion of adding to the Parking Table.  This 

was discussed and the addition of two parking spaces to the Parking Table was agreed upon.  

Member Sollog moved to push this article forward with a second by Vice Chair Tosh.  Voted all 

in favor.  So voted:  7-0-0.  Town Planner Ribeiro stated, just to be clear, that it is as written plus 

the parking.  Chair Greenbaum replied with a yes. 

 

The next Article regarding parking was read by Chair Greenbaum; Vice Chair Tosh moved to 

approve, and it was seconded by Member Herridge.  Chair Greenbaum asked if there were any 

questions; there were none.  Voted all in favor.  So voted:  7-0-0. 

 

Parking for the ADU, the next Article, was read by Chair Greenbaum.  Member Kiernan asked to 

add the word conditioned to the criteria with reduced or waived and this was discussed.  Town 

Planner Ribeiro suggested that adding conditions and decisions language, that provide after-the-

fact triggers to require changes to the project, might not be the way to go.  Further discussion of 

parking, possible neighbor objections, the need for two parking spaces, continued.  Member Sollog 

stated that this Article gives some leeway to the parking requirement and it doesn’t mean that the 



 

Truro Planning Board Public Meeting-Work Session Minutes of 2/12/2020 Page 2 of 5 

Planning Board has to grant it; this just provides a little relief, and an avenue, to this Board to work 

around the problem.  Member Sollog moved to forward this Article as written to the Select Board.  

Voted all in favor.  So voted:  7-0-0. 

 

Chair Greenbaum stated that the next ADU Article is for a reduction in paperwork.  Town Planner 

Ribeiro asked the Board if this Article, as well as the next two, could be incorporated as one 

Article; they are all §40.2 Accessory Dwelling Unit, D. Procedure.  This was discussed among the 

Board, but determined it was best to keep them separate for ease of public review.  Chair 

Greenbaum moved to approve and the motion was seconded by Member Sollog.  Voted all in 

favor.  So voted:  7-0-0. 

 

Concerning the ADU application submittal process, Member Kiernan asked about procedure, and 

meeting the requirements, if the Planning Board does not need to hear from the Board of Health, 

Conservation Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals – are those all conditions that we issue.  

Town Planner Ribeiro explained that the applicant still has to get their permits from the appropriate 

Board/Commission.  Chair Greenbaum mentioned that there will be an addition to the procedures 

page saying we strongly recommend applicants confer with the Town Planner at the beginning of 

this process to determine in what order to approach this.  Vice Chair Tosh moved to forward this 

revision, and it was seconded by Member Herridge.  Voted all in favor.  So voted:  7-0-0. 

 

Chair Greenbaum reiterated the next ADU Article, and the new and modified procedures were 

discussed.  Vice Chair Tosh moved to forward this revision, and it was seconded by Member 

Kiernan.  Voted all in favor.  So voted:  7-0-0. 

 

The next ADU Article was the striking of language regarding appeal and was discussed by the 

Board.  The elimination of this language was unanimous.  Member Sollog moved to forward this 

Article to the Select Board, and it was seconded by Member Kiernan.  Voted all in favor.  So voted:  

7-0-0. 

 

Chair Greenbaum stated that this next ADU Article was a housekeeping one.  Town Planner 

Ribeiro stated that the Section should be 11, not 10, referencing the General Bylaws.  He also 

stated that the Definition is no longer used in the Zoning Bylaw.  The ADU Bylaw states that these 

Accessory Dwelling Units, if meet the other requirements, qualify for that general section of the 

Bylaws.  Chair Greenbaum summarized that this Article is correcting the section referred to and 

removing unnecessary language.  Vice Chair Tosh moved to forward this Article to the Select 

Board, and it was seconded by Member Kiernan.  Voted all in favor.  So voted:  7-0-0. 

 

Chair Greenbaum stated that the next two Articles refer to the number of paper copies.  Vice Chair 

Tosh moved to forward both of these Articles to the Select Board, and it was seconded by Member 

Kiernan.  Voted all in favor.  So voted:  7-0-0. 

 

Chair Greenbaum stated that this next Article is an administrative correction which Town Planner 

Ribeiro confirmed.  Vice Chair Tosh moved to forward this Article to the Select Board, and it was 

seconded.  Voted all in favor.  So voted:  7-0-0. 

 



 

Truro Planning Board Public Meeting-Work Session Minutes of 2/12/2020 Page 3 of 5 

Chair Greenbaum stated that the next Article treats new construction the same as existing if it is 

inconsequential.  No discussion.  Vice Chair Tosh moved to forward this Article to the Select 

Board, and it was seconded.  Voted all in favor.  So voted:  7-0-0. 

 

Town Planner Ribeiro stated that he would write up a cover letter, have Anne sign it, get together 

the Notice, and file it with the Clerk.  The Hearing will be March 4. 

 

Regarding long-term goals, Member Kiernan stated that every decision the Zoning Board of 

Appeals makes states that it is with the intent and purpose of the Bylaw, yet the intent and purpose 

of the Bylaw is never actually spelled out.  Member Kiernan further stated that it has already been 

spelled out within the seashore’s house size limitation bylaw.  Member Kiernan quoted a portion 

of the Truro Zoning Bylaw, §50.2.D. Building Gross Floor Area for the Residential District 

approved in 2018:  “…the intention and purpose of this Bylaw, which is to promote the health, 

safety, convenience, and welfare of the inhabitants of Truro, prevent the overcrowding of land, 

conserve the value of land and buildings, enable the protection of clean and adequate water supply, 

conserve natural resources, prevent blight of the environment, encourage the most appropriate use 

of land in Truro.”  Chair Greenbaum asked Member Kiernan to verify that he is stating that this is 

some potential good language, and consistent language.  Town Planner Ribeiro stated that there is 

a Purpose statement.  Chair Greenbaum further asked if Member Kiernan is trying to get language 

in so the ZBA has to show in writing how their decision meets this and is consistent.  Member 

Kiernan stated Member Riemer commented that there should be actual findings.  Member Herridge 

stated the ZBA should be balancing the interests of the Town against the interests of capital.  Chair 

Greenbaum stated that this is a good idea, and it is a good goal to have rationale laid out for each 

decision.  Member Herridge stated that he believes the ZBA needs to know that when they are 

deciding things, they are going to have to put on paper why it is okay to do a certain thing that is 

against our Bylaws and why it is still better for the people of the Town.  Vice Chair Tosh stated 

that she agreed with Member Herridge but the Planning Board couldn’t legislate how the ZBA 

does their findings.  She believes the decisions should be detailed.  Another Member stated there 

should be a bylaw.  Chair Greenbaum stated that we are not going to do it for this year’s Town 

Meeting and added it to long-term goals.  Member Herridge restated that it is the issue of balancing 

between the interests of the Town and the interests of the applicant and having findings of fact and 

putting them on paper so the Judge can read them.  Chair Greenbaum further stated so that the 

people in Town understand their thinking.  Member Kiernan stated that this is also for future ZBA 

members to understand what and why.  Chair Greenbaum stated that for next year they should 

have three main goals, and this is one of them, so the rules are clear.  Member Riemer asked that 

absent findings, doesn’t that make a decision more vulnerable?  Town Planner Ribeiro stated that 

when he read the extent of the Special Permit review criteria, he realized there should be more 

detailed review criteria.  He will provide some examples to the Board. 

 

Chair Greenbaum commented on short conversation and to continue talking about a community-

wide housing conversation in a proactive way.  She stated that she was going to meet with Kevin 

Grunwald, Housing Authority.  Chair Greenbaum asked for thoughts about a possible work session 

after Town Meeting; brainstorming on moving forward in getting an inclusive conversation about 

the Town, what do we want to protect in the Town, denser housing, all leading to the Town making 

intentional decisions and including the Planning Board.  Member Sollog stated he thought 

engaging the public was a good idea and having forums to discuss the future of Truro.  Chair 



 

Truro Planning Board Public Meeting-Work Session Minutes of 2/12/2020 Page 4 of 5 

Greenbaum asked if it made sense to gather a few of the people who were already involved in this 

with the Planning Board for a work session?  Town Planner Ribeiro referenced a point brought up 

by Member Riemer regarding the Open Space and Recreation Plan Update, which is a State 

mandated plan.  There was a survey done, and something similar is being worked on as part of the 

Local Comprehensive Plan.  The first thing being done as part of the Local Comprehensive Plan 

process is reaching out to all the different groups and collecting a bullet list of what everyone is 

doing.  Then the first step will be determined and possibly involve a community visioning session.  

That information will direct the Local Comprehensive Plan going forward. 

 

Town Planner Ribeiro and Chair Greenbaum have already discussed that out of the Local 

Comprehensive Plan there will be many things for the Planning Board to act on.  Also, having a 

more targeted discussion on housing can continually be addressed at the same time with the 

Housing Authority and the public involved. 

 

The Walsh property and the Walsh Property Community Planning Committee were discussed 

regarding Planning Board representation.  Member Kiernan stated that there should be someone 

on the Committee conversant with the law in Town and with State law and Title 5.  Chair 

Greenbaum stated that she believes that is the thinking with their plan to have liaisons from, for 

example, the Board of Health and the Planning Board, involved in this.  Town Planner Ribeiro 

believes the Consensus Building Group is designing that process, but he is unsure of status and 

will find out for the Board. 

 

Member Sollog asked about reaching out and connecting with other Boards and how to provide 

more interaction with Boards that are doing similar work.  Chair Greenbaum asked how do we 

want to move forward with this bigger community-wide conversation around housing and are there 

representatives of other Boards or groups that we would like to sit down with to collectively think 

about how to move forward.  Also, what techniques are used in community thinking.  The Board 

discussed these questions and the information they would like to see.  On the list of potential 

groups are Board of Health, Assessor for data, Highland Trust, Local Comprehensive Plan, Open 

Space, School Committee, COA, Disability Commission, Part-Time Residents. 

 

Member Kiernan asked if we were waiting for the Cloverleaf peer review.  Town Planner Ribeiro 

responded yes.  Member Kiernan then asked about the DPW status.  Town Planner Ribeiro stated 

there is no permit application, and that it would not be coming before this year’s Town Meeting.  

Member Kiernan asked where he could find a copy of the DPW location study done for the Select 

Board.  Town Planner Ribeiro stated he would look for it.  Member Riemer stated that at last 

night’s Select Board meeting it was found out that the Town might be able to potentially locate a 

source of water by using Snow’s Field, and possibly supplying that water to Town Hall, and 

remove the contamination issue with regard to keeping the DPW here.  Member Sollog stated that 

it was brought up to use a remote well for Town Hall.  Member Riemer stated he was told that it 

was considered in the past but never pursued.  Town Planner Ribeiro stated that the letter was 

submitted but with some concerns, such as you cannot have a Zone 1 with a playing field in it.  

The playing field would have to be removed if the public well were to go there. 

 

Regarding clean fill, the Board could address it in the next couple of weeks.  Member Riemer 

would like to see more percentage of site coverage information of which Town Planner Ribeiro 



 

Truro Planning Board Public Meeting-Work Session Minutes of 2/12/2020 Page 5 of 5 

thought he could do some analysis as this was done in Provincetown.  From this analysis, he 

thought the Board could then extrapolate some average or some medium and start looking at what 

that would look like as a dimensional regulation or a standard across the Town.  Member Sollog 

stated he thought this would make the House-Size Amendment make sense for the small lot size. 

 

Chair Greenbaum summarized the long-term goals list:  housing issue, street definition, site 

coverage, and the ZBA decision criteria.  Member Kiernan suggested that this decision criteria be 

applied to both the ZBA and Planning Boards.  Town Planner Ribeiro offered to provide the Board 

with Wellfleet’s special permit criteria for their review. 

 

Member Kiernan stated he was waiting for the Board of Health regulations in Word for his own 

personal use.  Chair Greenbaum suggested she could convert .pdf to Word for him.  She stated that 

the converted format isn’t always great but that it would serve his purpose.  Word documents aren’t 

generally distributed to avoid corruption of the original. 

 

Chair Greenbaum asked if they had site visits on Tuesday.  Town Planner Ribeiro responded yes 

and that he will verify 4H Bay View Road/3 Laura’s Way.  Chair Greenbaum stated 2:30 site visit 

on the 18th.  Member Kiernan asked if Town Planner Ribeiro could ask them, or get an explanation, 

on a couple of things:  (1) who owns the “v” in the road on Laura’s Way; (2) who owns the “v” in 

the road on Sawyer Grove Road; (3) what are the conditions for the Homeowners Associations on 

the two; and (4) could they explain why the plan that is registered with the County on Laura’s Way 

has no Planning Board signatures or date on it.  Town Planner Ribeiro stated that the answer to 

that is that it was constructively approved because the Planning Board didn’t act within the 

appropriate timeframes.  Member Kiernan stated he would like for them to tell them the 

circumstances why it was constructively approved because he believes the Board ran out the clock; 

instead of doing it in 135 days they did it in 137 days; and after the Board found out it was 

constructively approved they brought it up again and denied it.  The Court said that they had 

approved it and no longer had any say.  Town Planner Ribeiro stated he would be preparing 

comments and they would have them in their packets on Friday.  Also included would be a memo 

from 2016 prepared by KP Law the last time that they tried to subdivide these parcels. 

 

Regarding the Schirmer property, Town Planner Ribeiro needs to get together with John O’Reilly 

and the Fire Chief, so that may be continued again.  He will get time extensions if necessary. 

 

A tentative date for the next work session is Wednesday, February 26 at 2:30 pm. 

 

Member Riemer asked if they were going to discuss contacting the Department of the Interior.  

Chair Greenbaum stated no because Karen had to leave so they will get back to that one. 

 

Chair Greenbaum then asked if she could have a motion to adjourn.  Member Sollog so moved 

with a second by Member Boleyn. 

 

Meeting adjourned. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Elizabeth Sturdy 



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

TOWN OF TRURO 
Planning Board 
MEETING MINUTES 
February 19, 2020 
TRURO TOWN HALL 
 
Members Present:  Chair-Anne Greenbaum, Paul Kiernan, Jack Riemer, Bruce Boleyn, Steve Sollog 
 
Members Absent:  Karen Tosh, Peter Herridge 
 
Others Present:  Town Planner-Jeffrey Ribeiro, Ethan Poulin 
 
Chair Greenbaum called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 
Public Comment Period:  No public comments. 
 
Public Hearing 
2020-001/PB – Nathan A. Nickerson III seeks approval of a Definitive Subdivision Plan of Land, 
pursuant to G.L. c. 41, §81T and §2.5 of the Town of Truro Rules and Regulations Governing the 
Subdivision of Land with respect to property at 4-H Bay View Road and 3 Laura’s Way, Truro, MA, Map 
39, Parcels 77 and 325. 
Town Planner Ribeiro stated that Mr. Nickerson requested to continue.  He was concerned that there 
was a chance, based upon the election, that the Planning Board would be down to six members and 
they wanted to make sure they had a full complement of the Board for review of the project.  Mr. 
Nickerson has requested to continue the hearing to the March 4, 2020 meeting.  The Board of Health 
reviewed the project last night, he expects written comments by the end of the week, and he’ll make 
sure to send that to the Board members.  Based on discussion had with Health Agent Beebe, the 
comments are relatively minimal.  There are some comments primarily on storm water, but there were 
no significant concerns from the Board of Health’s jurisdiction and perspective.  Chair Greenbaum 
mentioned that a letter was sent to her.  She wished to know when it should be read aloud.  Town 
Planner Ribeiro stated that would be for the substantive hearing.  Member Kiernan noted that the 
Nickerson’s are looking to speak with the Fire Chief.  Sometimes when applicants come in, they wish to 
talk with the Police Chief.  He’d like to know what standing does the opinion of the Police Chief, and the 
opinion of the Fire Chief, have within their (the Planning Board’s) review of a subdivision.  Town Planner 
Ribeiro stated that it’s pretty much advisory.  He believes the Board of Health is binding, under the 
Subdivision Control Act, as far as conditions imposed.  It’s really their input that is some of the most 
valuable input the Board gets for subdivision review.  Based on his conversation, the Fire Chief generally 
felt that they should be abiding by the roadway standards whenever possible to ensure safe routing for 
his vehicles and emergency access.  Member Kiernan would like to inform the Board that in his 27 years 
of familiarity with the Planning Board the Police Chief and the Fire Chief are always informed when 
asked their opinion.  Only once in 27 years did the Fire Chief, after he’d approved a road, came back to 
the Board and say, no, you shouldn’t drive on it after he got a vehicle stuck in a particular road.  Member 
Kiernan has found that when you ask some of the officials in Town that aren’t familiar with subdivision 
rules and regulations, they sometimes send the Board a form letter.  Sometimes it is of questionable 
help in making the Board formulate whether something is actually safe or not.  Chair Greenbaum stated 
that may be an additional question for both Chiefs.  When deriving an opinion from them, perhaps they 
should ask if they have driven/or been on the road. 



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Member Riemer, regarding abutters to this proposal, would like to know if they will be given 
information as to what happens after tonight?  In case they would like to appear for the next meeting, 
will they be contacted somehow?  Town Planner Ribeiro stated that abutters do not receive subsequent 
notice, but there is a very active group in this neighborhood that are getting word around about the 
proceedings.  He’s been in touch with them.  Member Riemer would like abutters to be reminded that 
they can also send an email or a letter to be read into the record.  Town Planner Ribeiro stated, “yes”.  
Chair Greenbaum asked why abutters do not get notice of the continuance?  Town Planner Ribeiro said 
that the requirement is to notice the hearing (the opening of the hearing).  The idea is that people will 
be aware of that and will follow along.  It is publicized at the meeting when the continuance will be.  
From a practical perspective, the Board would never be able to continue to the next meeting if they had 
to re-notice, because it takes more than two weeks to get notice published and sent.  He also feels it’s 
important to be consistent in how they handle cases.  He thinks there are certain circumstances in which 
they may informally let folks who’ve been engaged, about whether or not a case is going to be 
continued.  To make it a policy would be very difficult. 
 
Member Kiernan made a motion to continue the Public Hearing for case 2020/001-Nathan A. 
Nickerson III requesting approval of a Definitive Subdivision Plan of Land, to the regularly scheduled 
Planning Board meeting of March 4, 2020. 
Member Boleyn seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Public Hearing – Continued 
2019-006/PB – Abigail B. Schirmer, Audrey Schirmer, and Joseph M. Schirmer seek approval of a 
Preliminary Subdivision Plan of Land, pursuant to G.L. c. 41, §81S and §2.4 of the Town of Truro Rules 
and Regulations Governing the Subdivision of Land with respect to property at Route 6 and Amity 
Lane, Truro, MA, Map 46, Parcel 8. 
 
Town Planner Ribeiro reminded the Board that where they left off at the last meeting was to get the Fire 
Chief out to the property to meet with the Engineer, and himself.  With the holidays, he is still trying to 
get this scheduled either this week or next week so that the Board can discuss at the March 4th meeting. 
Member Kiernan wished to know if the Board would be having a site visit before the March 4th meeting, 
and how/when/where would they know?  Chair Greenbaum clarified that this question was in regard to 
the first Public Hearing, 2020-001/PB – Nathan A. Nickerson III.  Town Planner Ribeiro stated they could 
discuss at the end of the meeting.  His expectation was to conduct the site visit on March 3, 2020, at 
2:30 pm.  He added that the site visit for 2019-006/PB, Schirmer, was already done. 
 
Member Kiernan made a motion to continue the Public Hearing for case 2019-006/PB application by 
Abigail B. Schirmer, Audrey Schirmer, and Joseph M. Schirmer requesting approval of a Preliminary 
Subdivision Plan for the regularly scheduled Planning Board meeting of March 4, 2020. 
Member Sollog seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Board Action/Review 
2020-001/SPR – Ethan Poulin seeks Waiver of Commercial Site Plan Review pursuant to Section 70.9 
of the Truro Zoning Bylaw for the installation of a garden shed at the existing commercial property 
located at 5 Highland Road, North Truro, MA, Map 36, Parcel 201. 
 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Ethan Poulin approached the Board.  He currently has a shed on the property.  He would like to remove 
that one and erect a bigger, newer one in its place.  Town Planner Ribeiro stated this is an issue with the 
bylaw which he’s trying to clear up.  There are changes in the Zoning Bylaw, proposed for Town Meeting 
that address the “existing structures” in the Site Plan Review Waiver section.  He believes there are no 
significant impacts from Mr. Poulin’s proposal.  It’s really an issue of that language in the bylaw, and 
hopefully they’ll address that at the Town Meeting. 
Member Kiernan told Mr. Poulin that the problem lies within the wording of their bylaw, not with him.  
The letter Mr. Poulin attached to his application states that Mr. Poulin wishes to replace his old shed 
with a new one, and that fits within the current wording of the bylaw.  Member Kiernan does not see a 
problem with that.  Town Planner Ribeiro apologized and said that what Mr. Poulin wanted to do could 
be considered the reconstruction of an existing shed.  Member Boleyn asked for the size of the shed.  
Mr. Poulin stated it was 10 x 20.  Member Kiernan asked if there would be a bathroom, to which Mr. 
Poulin stated no.  Member Riemer pointed out that some of the confusion came from the application, in 
which Mr. Poulin wrote that he was installing a garden shed, not replacing one.  He also asked what the 
shed would be used for.  Mr. Poulin explained that it would be for bags of concrete, a small compactor, 
and tools.  Member Riemer finds that this proposal does not have a substantial impact on the business 
district or the adjoining residential district. 
 
Member Kiernan made a motion in the matter of 2020-001/SPR site plan review for Ethan Poulin to 
approve the request for a waiver of site plan review pursuant to Section 70.9 of the Truro Zoning 
Bylaw for the installation of a garden shed at the existing commercial property located at 5 Highland 
Road, North Truro, MA. 
Member Boleyn seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
Chair Greenbaum mentioned that the Board is trying to clean up the confusion of the bylaw at Town 
Meeting.  There will be an article at Town Meeting that adds new buildings to this article to make it very 
clear. 
 
Review of the Cloverleaf Truro Rental Housing Comprehensive Permit application under MGL Ch. 40B 
to formulate comments for submittal to the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
Chair Greenbaum asked if there were any updates.  Town Planner Ribeiro said he was hoping to have 
the Peer Review this week.  The applicant had to make some changes to grading, necessitated by the 
ongoing discussions with State fire officials.  The drive will now be fully compliant with the State fire 
requirements.  The Peer Review is being held off until Horsley Witten can view the modified plans, and 
he is expecting that by the end of next week.  The Zoning Board’s hearing, set for February 24th, will be 
continued.  Town Planner Ribeiro is trying to get an exact date but is looking at March 12th.  Chair 
Greenbaum asked if it’s possible, given the degree of interest, to announce ahead of time that the 
hearing will be delayed?  Town Planner Ribeiro stated that this was a good opportunity to state it on tv, 
and he would update the Cloverleaf website.   
Member Riemer had a general question about affordable housing for the Town Planner.  He’s come 
across a term called local initiative unit and local initiative program and asked if the Town Planner was 
familiar with it.  Town Planner Ribeiro explained that the LIP program is a process primarily to get units 
created in certain partnerships with local communities onto the subsidized housing inventory.  Here, 
those are going to be federally subsidized units created through, at least in part, the low-income tax 
credit program.  They will qualify for the subsidized housing inventory.  With rental projects, as an 
incentive to towns to allow rental projects and not home ownership, all units within the development 
will qualify as SHI eligible units even those that are at higher income levels.  He does not think the 
Cloverleaf project is technically a LIP project.  Chair Greenbaum added that as they move forward and 



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

look at more housing (and housing in general) she thinks there are a lot of things that the Board should 
explore.  Town Planner Ribeiro said that the LIP guidelines can be onerous.  They require that if you are 
creating an affordable housing unit it has to be 700 square feet.  Member Reimer thought this might be 
something that would work in Truro. 
Member Kiernan stated that one of the big problems in Truro is that people have to upgrade their septic 
system, to the tune of tens of thousands of dollars in some cases, in order to put in an affordable or 
accessory apartment.  He asked if there are State programs that will help people with their septic?  
Town Planner Ribeiro explained that he’d been discussing this with the Health Agent.  He would like to 
get it in writing, however it’s his understanding that the County Septic Loan Program will be available for 
people who want to do accessory dwelling units.  He will confirm that.  Member Kiernan wished to 
clarify for people listening and asked if this was a grant, or a low-interest or no-interest loan?  The Town 
Planner believes it is a low-interest loan.   
 
Discussion and potential vote on article amending General Bylaws addressing Clean Fill. 
 
Chair Greenbaum asked the Town Planner if the article would need to go to the Select Board, and then 
be sent back to the Planning Board and if so, do they have time because it does not require a public 
hearing?  Town Planner Ribeiro said that there is time.  The Board will be holding a workshop next 
Wednesday where hopefully they can wrap up going over it.  The Select Board does have a policy of not 
taking votes at work sessions, so the Planning Board should post their meeting as a public meeting.  He 
will double-check to be sure they can wait until the 4th to provide the final language.  The Select Board 
will formally close the warrant on the 10th.  If the Planning Board can pin down a proposal, they should 
get it over to Town Counsel for them to look at it, along with the Health/Conservation Agent, Emily 
Beebe.  Member Kiernan would like to be sure that Health/Conservation Agent Beebe gets a copy of the 
article as soon as possible so that they will have her comments for the meeting on the 4th. 
 
Chair Greenbaum confirmed the date for the workshop for next Wednesday, the 4th, and on the agenda 
would be the article amending General Bylaws addressing Clean Fill.  She also informed the Board that 
she met with Kevin Grunwald, the Chair of the Truro Housing Authority.  The day after they met, the 
Housing Authority had their meeting.  They thought the concept of the Housing Authority having a joint 
work session with the Planning Board to talk about pro-actively getting the community engaged in 
thinking broadly about housing and providing, at the end of the process, some good guidance to the 
Planning Board for zoning, was a great idea.  The Housing Authority would love to do a work session to 
get things started, even before Town Meeting. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
July 24, 2019 
 
Member Kiernan made a motion to approve the minutes as amended. 
Member Sollog seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Member Riemer asked if minutes approved are then posted on the website the next day?  Town Planner 
Ribeiro was not sure but would find out.  He believes amendments are done on Thursday, after which 
they go to the Clerk and then are posted.  Member Riemer wished to make the point that the minutes 
were from July 24th, and asked when they are posted will a member of the public get an alert, or will 
they just go into the archives?  Town Planner Ribeiro believes that if a citizen was looking for these 
minutes, they would have been bumped to the top of the pile.  He is sure that if there was an inquiry, 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

the staff downstairs is aware and would be on it.  Member Riemer stated that up to date minutes are 
important and if they are just archived, there should be a way to alert citizens that they are uploaded.  
Town Planner Ribeiro was not sure and will ask. 
 
Chair Greenbaum stated that the next meeting would be held on Wednesday, March 4, 2020 at 5:00 pm.  
Town Planner Ribeiro added that their work session would be held next Wednesday at 2:30 pm, and a 
site visit was scheduled for the Nickerson subdivision on Tuesday, March 3, 2020 at 2:30 pm. 
 
Member Sollog made a motion to adjourn at 5:53 pm. 
Member Riemer seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Noelle L. Scoullar 



 

Truro Planning Board Work Session Minutes of 2/26/2020 Page 1 of 4 

TOWN OF TRURO 

PLANNING BOARD 

Work Session Minutes 

February 26, 2020 – 2:30 pm 

Truro Town Hall 

 

 

Members Present:  Anne Greenbaum (Chair); Karen Tosh (Vice Chair); Jack Riemer (Clerk); 

R. Bruce Boleyn; Peter Herridge; Paul Kiernan; Steve Sollog 

 

Members Absent:  None 

 

Other Participants:  Jeffrey Ribeiro, AICP – Truro Town Planner; Martha Nagy 

 

 

Chair Greenbaum asked if there was any public comment.  Martha Nagy stated not at this time. 

 

Member Kiernan thanked one of the members for providing a Charter Review Committee history 

commencing June 6, 2019 specifically regarding comments to whether the Planning Board should 

be appointed or elected.  This packet has their agendas, goals and objectives of the Selectmen, and 

emails that went back and forth between the members of this Board and the Chairman of the other 

Board as well as two emails that were between members of the public and the Chairman’s response 

to the public. 

 

Member Kiernan stated that also within the 20-page handout was the November 1st Charter Review 

Committee agenda, a copy of the email where previous emails were corrected by the Chair of the 

Charter Review Committee, their current directive from the Selectmen that was updated on 

January 14, and a copy of Memorandum 54.  Town Planner Ribeiro stated that, before going 

further, this wasn’t on the agenda so potentially there are opportunities to discuss matters not 

reasonably anticipated more than 48 hours by the Chair.  Member Kiernan suggested that the Board 

should have these copies for discussion at a later time.  Chair Greenbaum agreed that discussion 

should take place at a later time and after review of the packet. 

 

Chair Greenbaum addressed the first agenda item of clean fill.  Member Kiernan put together a 

packet of information regarding major issues for the Board which was distributed.  Chair 

Greenbaum stated she thought this should not go on the upcoming Town Meeting because they 

haven’t met with the developers, contractors, landscapers, etc., for input yet and also that there is 

no public hearing required.  The Board discussed whether this article for a Bylaw change should 

go before Town Meeting now or wait until a later date until they have more feedback.  Also, in 

that discussion were the topics of unclean fill, pollutants – what is or isn’t a pollutant (Truro Board 

of Health and Massachusetts CMR to be reviewed), lead, nitrogen, where and how fill is obtained.  

Member Tosh suggested that the Board start working on this item soon even if it is pulled from 

the Warrant.  Chair Greenbaum also stated that they need to be clear on the intent of the Bylaw 

and what it is they are trying to accomplish.  Town Planner Ribeiro also suggested for discussion:  

regulations/permits, what mechanisms should be in place for verification, and exact standards.  

Town Planner Ribeiro referred the Board to a previous packet he distributed that contained 



 

Truro Planning Board Work Session Minutes of 2/26/2020 Page 2 of 4 

examples of earth filling bylaws, however they are more complex, but the content should be 

considered for discussion.  Chair Greenbaum suggested the Building Commissioner attend the next 

workshop to talk about this.  Member Herridge also suggested they speak to someone who actually 

owns a business and who knows the logistics of getting clean fill, using it, where to get it. 

 

Member Kiernan stated his thoughts on the process and trying to keep it simple by referencing 

Board of Health regulations and Massachusetts Drinking Water regulations which are already in 

place.  He believes that if this process is discussed the public will become more aware of what 

could possibly be contained in clean fill.  Member Riemer mentioned that this could also benefit 

the homeowner in that substandard fill would not be allowed by the Town.  Chair Greenbaum and 

the Board further discussed the process issue and the content.  Town Planner Ribeiro reviewed the 

timeline necessary for this matter to go before the Select Board and Town Counsel before going 

to Town Meeting, whether this change was specific enough, and if this was something that could 

be enforced and who would enforce it.  Member Kiernan referenced the Soil Removal Bylaw and 

what currently exists.  Chair Greenbaum suggested the possibility of a permit process.  Town 

Planner Ribeiro referenced prior handouts that should be reviewed for information regarding how 

other towns handled this process.  Chair Greenbaum and the Board will work on this issue with 

the possibility of having it ready for a special Town Meeting in the fall if there is one, as major 

issues have already been identified.  Member Kiernan suggested they submit their list to the Select 

Board and get their feedback.  Chair Greenbaum stated she would speak with the Select Board 

Chair regarding this concept. 

 

Chair Greenbaum stated she received a link from Member Riemer regarding the Citizen Planner 

Training Collaborative Conference; Town Planner Ribeiro provided the conference information in 

the Board’s packets.  Chair Greenbaum stated that she would be attending.  Town Planner Ribeiro 

stated that it is March 21 in Worcester and talked about some of the presenters and topics of interest 

to the Planning Board, which were then discussed. 

 

Chair Greenbaum and Town Planner Ribeiro had previously discussed calendar information – 

looking at hearings, continuing hearings, trying to set a date with the Truro Housing Authority for 

a joint work session.  The Board reviewed their schedules for meeting availability leading up to 

time of Town Meeting.  Proposed dates to the Housing Authority for a joint work session will be 

April 13, April 16, and April 17.  Member Riemer asked Chair Greenbaum to inform the Board of 

CDP’s peer group sessions, which are done a couple of times per year, and she stated the topic this 

year is ADU’s.  The session will be March 3 at The Commons in Provincetown, which she and 

Member Riemer will attend.  They will report back to the Board after attendance. 

 

Town Planner Ribeiro had submitted questions and thoughts to the Board regarding housing 

planning.  Chair Greenbaum stated she wanted to discuss next steps and brainstorm several 

different questions so it will all be together to work from.  The questions/thoughts from Town 

Planner Ribeiro were put up on the screen for discussion; Board Members were asked to use Post-

It Notes for each thought: 

 

1. What are your concerns about development, including housing development, in Truro?  

(i.e. wishes and worries) 
 

• Housing for housing sake not specific – what are the specific housing needs 



 

Truro Planning Board Work Session Minutes of 2/26/2020 Page 3 of 4 

• Another 40B project 

• Large housing developments 

• Infrastructure – water issues, sewer 

• Current well water/wastewater study 

• Taxes 

• Preserve rural feel that keeps desirability and value 

• Loss of local control 

• Identify most important natural habitats 

• Cost of land (approaching buildout) 

• How much existing land should remain open space 

• Jobs v affordability 

 

2. What questions would you like answered about housing and development?  What 

information do you think we need? 
 

• Water study 

• Breakdown of the population growth 

• Housing needs (specific data):  seniors downsizing, young families 

• Access to healthcare services 

• Impact of aging on housing 

• Inclusionary zoning/building permits (rehab) 

• Creative zoning options 

• Is more housing the answer 

• Cost of municipal water system (drinking water) 

• Effect of municipal sewage on taxes 

• How is water quality changing 

• What water amount is available 

• What kind of affordable, workforce, housing does Truro actually need; an honest and 

objective housing assessment 

• Need a macro view of the Town – what is the planning goal for this Town 

• Good comprehensive data on existing housing stock 

• What jobs are available – assessment of year-round jobs 

 

3. What questions do you think we should be asking the community? 
 

• Need a macro view of the Town – what is the planning goal for this Town 

• What do people of Truro want Truro to look like 

• Sustainable year-round community 

• Seasonal 

• What is the effect of housing – no more housing, solutions, character – to what degree 

can you address these issues 

• Cape development 

• 40B/Safe Harbor – understanding it 

• Community feedback on housing – types of housing and who needs housing 

• What areas of Town could handle venture housing and what areas should be protected 



 

Truro Planning Board Work Session Minutes of 2/26/2020 Page 4 of 4 

• Housing crisis/income crisis 

• Rental housing v home ownership (building) equity 

• Affordable home ownership and home ownership 

• Creative funding options 

• Creative ownership options 

 

Chair Greenbaum asked if the Board wanted to have a work session two weeks from today.  

Wednesday, March 11 at 2:30 pm was decided upon. 

 

Town Planner Ribeiro stated that he had spoken with the applicant for Nickerson, and they want 

to be heard by a full Board.  It is anticipated they will be going forward, and he will let the Board 

know as soon as possible.  The site visit has been confirmed. 

 

Meeting adjourned. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Elizabeth Sturdy 


	Planning Board Agenda 6-3-2020.pdf
	Forms for 6-3-2020.pdf
	Special Permit Packet for Review 6-3-2020.pdf
	Subdivision of Land Regulations 2016.pdf
	Form A Old-New.pdf
	Pre-Submission New.pdf
	Form B Old-New.pdf
	Form C Old-New.pdf
	Form D Old-New.pdf
	Form E Old-New.pdf
	Form F Old-New.pdf

	Minutes for 6-3-2020.pdf
	18-07-11-PLN BD MIN for approval at 6-3-2020 mtg.pdf
	20-02-05-PLN BD MIN for approval at 6-3-2020 mtg.pdf
	2-12-2020 PB Work Session Min for approval at 6-3-2020 mtg.pdf
	20-02-19-PLNBD-MIN for approval at 6-3-2020 mtg.pdf
	2-26-2020 PB Work Session Min for approval at 6-3-2020 mtg.pdf


